# Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Norton Lindsey Parish Council held in the Church Room at 7.45pm on 2 September 2019

Present:	Cllr J Stobart (Chairman); Cllr M Neale; Cllr Mrs A Mace-Leska; Cllr Miss A Birch; Cllr Mrs K Elmhirst; Cllr N Brown; Cllr Mrs F Goossens; WDC Cllr A Rhead
Parish Clerk:	Mrs Jennifer Bendall
Public:	13 for part of the meeting.

Apologies: Apologies were received from WCC Cllr L Caborn who was on holiday

- Chairman's notice regarding the recording and filming of the meeting The notice regarding the recording and filming of meetings was displayed for those present to read.
- 2. Record of members present Noted.
- **3.** Apologies and acceptance of reasons for absence Noted.
- 4. Declaration of Interest (existence and nature) on Items on the Agenda None.

## 5. Public Comments

Members of the public were in attendance to discuss the outline planning application for 12 affordable houses behind Brick Kiln Close off Curlieu Lane. It was noted that there could be an additional 55 residents in the village of Norton Lindsey if the houses are built, and it was felt that building these houses would not satisfy the needs of the Claverdon Housing Needs Survey due to the location. There was discussion regarding land in Breach Lane, Claverdon, and the proposed development there by the Warwickshire Rural Community Council and the Warwickshire Rural Housing Association. It was noted that there were concerns with the impact a development behind Brick Kiln Close would have on surrounding properties due to the height of the field and the proposed building materials. There was discussion regarding rural exception schemes, and it was felt that the Curlieu Lane site should only be considered if there was no other land available. It was noted that Claverdon Parish Council is possibly commissioning a new Housing Needs Survey. The Chairman urged the members of the public to make their own representations regarding this planning application.

6. To approve the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 9 July 2019 and the Extraordinary Meeting held on 12 August 2019

The minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 9 July 2019 and the Extraordinary Meeting held on 12 August 2019 were taken as read, approved and signed.

## 7. Chairman's / Clerk's report

None.

## 8. Matters arising

 <u>Support to NL Neighbourhood Watch</u> – Further to agreement that NLPC should offer support to the Norton Lindsey Neighbourhood Watch Scheme, the meeting discussed the NW request for financial support for an annual meeting. It was agreed that NLPC could be willing to support this action subject to funds permitting, and that this request would be considered when budget-setting in December. • <u>PCC grant</u> – The Clerk advised that NLPC's application to the PCC grant fund had been unsuccessful. It was agreed this was disappointing, and that we would keep an eye open for alternative grants

#### 9. Millennium Green

- 9.1 To receive update following accident and to note the withdrawal of the original quote received for repairs to Millennium Green and installation of a replacement bench. The Clerk advised that the original quote received for carrying out repairs to Millennium Green slabs and fixing a new bench to the slabs had been withdrawn, and that our insurers had requested that two quotes be provided for this work.
- 9.2 To consider new quotes for repairs to Millennium Green and installation of a replacement bench

Following discussion, the Councillors asked the Clerk to request new quotes which include fixing the broken fence as well.

#### 10. To discuss the Stanks Horse Trough

The meeting noted that Cllr Brown had cleared the recent blockage and water levels had now returned to normal. It was agreed that Cllr Brown would investigate who is responsible for the Stanks Horse Trough.

#### 11. Parish Council Action Plan update

#### 11.1 Review / action to improve aspects of the physical environment of the parish

See Matters Arising regarding the PCC grant, which had been applied for to fund investigations into the extension of the pavement from Arles Cottage to the Blacon Farm track. WDC Cllr Rhead talked about a Climate Change event being held in Barford, and strongly recommended that NLPC consider a similar event. It was suggested this was something we could do with Wolverton PC. It was agreed that some Councillors would try to attend the Barford event on 15 September. Cllr Neale gave an update on his investigations into getting a recycling facility at Village Hall/Cricket Club, and advised that he was not getting any response from a local contractor and that he will try again.

## 11.2 Conduct a biodiversity audit of the parish and its surroundings

Cllr Mrs Mace-Leska advised that the audit is in progress, and that she is looking at registering the trees in the locality with the Woodland Trust. There was a discussion regarding Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs), which prevents trees coming under threat, whereas the Woodland Trust looks at the ages and types of trees in an area. If a tree has a value to the community, anyone can apply for a TPO. It was agreed that NLPC would keep an eye on all tree works in parish.

#### **11.3** Improve communication with parishioners and neighbouring authorities

The Chairman advised that he has had an informal meeting with the Wolverton PC Chair, and will try to meet with the Claverdon PC Chair in the future. It was agreed that although Norton Lindsey borders several other parishes, Wolverton and Claverdon are the parishes that we are most "associated" with.

## 12. To discuss issues within the Parish relating to highways (eg. the state of the roads, parking, overgrown hedges, etc)

## 12.1 Update on issues previously reported –

- The Clerk has reported the blocked gulleys again. The meeting noted that Snitterfield Lane will be closed for a week from 9 September to clear and repair the gulleys from New Road through to Heath End.
- WCC have raised an order for painting the lines around the pole stays on Wolverton Road, and WCC will contact Western Power to request that the stays be padded.
- The playing field hedge has been cut.

• The brambles on Snitterfield Lane have been cut once, but will need doing again. Cllr Mrs Mace-Leska to keep eye on the growth and report to the land owner again as necessary.

### 12.2 New issues

- The road is breaking away around the manhole covers opposite Hi-Loe on Snitterfield Lane and there is a hole on the verge. These will be addressed when the road is closed.
- Church Road/Snitterfield Lane junction street light not working.

#### 13. Correspondence and Communications Report

#### (circulated to Councillors prior to meeting)

Noted. There was discussion regarding correspondence from WALC about VE Day 75 celebrations, and it was noted that the New Inn might be holding a street party event on 8 May 2020 and that schools in the area are also planning events. It was agreed that ClIrs Brown and Mrs Mace-Leska will investigate what, if anything, the Parish Council could do. WDC forwarded slides from the Planning Training for Town and Parish Councillors presentation that ClIr Neale attended. ClIr Neale advised that the meeting was interesting, but that it was mostly about how WDC handles planning matters. It was agreed that the notification received from WCC regarding the Warwickshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment should be displayed on the website.

#### 14. Parish Council Regulations and Procedures

There was nothing new to report.

#### 15. Finance Matters

#### **15.1** To note payments received since last meeting:

NatWest Bank Plc – interest (May to July 2019). Noted.

Cambridge & Counties Bank – interest (August 2018 to July 2019). Noted.

**15.2** To note payments made since last meeting:

Clerk's Salary – July and August 2019. Noted.

## 15.3 To note expenditure for approval:

Wolverton with Norton Lindsey & Langley PCC – annual servicing of the Norton Lindsey Church Clock (carried out by The Cumbria Clock Company Ltd). Payment agreed, but the Clerk to ask that in future NLPC is invoiced directly for the annual servicing to enable the VAT element to be reclaimed.

- **15.4** To note income and expenditure year to date. Noted.
- **15.5 To consider the Clerk's request to attend the SLCC Website Accessibility Guidelines Webinar.** Agreed.

## 16. Planning Matters

## **16.1** To note and consider planning applications received:

 Grade 3 Agricultural Land On Gannaway Farm, Brick Kiln Close, Norton Lindsey (19/01618/OUT) - Stratford District Council

Outline planning application for the development of 12 no affordable homes, with all matters reserved except for access

Following discussion and taking into consideration the results of the recently carried out survey and the comments made by members of the public at this meeting, the Councillors agreed unanimously to object to the planning application for the following reasons:

- 1. The location of the proposed development in relation to Claverdon village:
  - The Claverdon Housing Needs Survey 2017 identified a requirement for affordable homes to be built within the Claverdon village boundary close to its facilities;

• The proposed development is over 2 miles from Claverdon. There is no footpath along much of the A4189 and no footpath at all on Saddlebow Lane, and therefore there

is no safe walking route from Norton Lindsey to Claverdon. In addition, there is no public transport facilities between the two villages.

- 2. The proposed development does not meet Norton Lindsey's housing needs. The Norton Lindsey Housing Needs Survey 2017 did not show an identified need for affordable housing.
- 3. Curlieu Lane is frequented by pedestrians including ramblers, dog walkers, people walking to and from the Norton Lindsey pub, etc, and the proposed increase in traffic on a narrow stretch of road, which for part has a 60mph speed limit and no footpath, is dangerous. The additional traffic generated through Brick Kiln Close and Curlieu Lane will negatively impact on the village of Norton Lindsey, and the lack of any practicable public transport adds to the strain placed on its infrastructure. There are only a couple of buses a week from the centre of Norton Lindsey and no footpaths to either Claverdon, Warwick Parkway or Hatton Rail Stations.
- 4. The proposed development will have a negative impact on the street scene and openness of the green belt.
- 5. The proposed design of the properties is not in keeping with the surrounding properties.

#### 16.2 To note planning applications received and considered under delegated powers:

**Bubbs Cottage**, 22 Henley Road, Lower Norton, Norton Lindsey, Warwick, CV35 8RB (W/19/0815)

*To construct a small discrete raised balcony at the rear of the property* NLPC submitted a neutral, no comment response.

• **Cleeve Cottage**, Main Street, Norton Lindsey, Warwick, CV35 8JA (W/19/0687) Proposed erection of a part single and two storey rear extension. Alterations to existing attached garage. Revised

NLPC submitted a neutral, no comment response.

## **16.3** To note planning application decisions received:

- **7 Mill Close**, Norton Lindsey, Warwick, CV35 8JU (W/19/0780) granted
- Cleeve Cottage, Main Street, Norton Lindsey, Warwick, CV35 8JA (W/19/0687) granted
- Victoria Cottage, Main Street, Norton Lindsey, Warwick, CV35 8JA (W/19/0861) granted

## **16.4** To note planning application updates:

- None.
- 16.5 To note and consider planning appeal notifications received:
  - None.
- **16.6 To note planning appeal decisions received:** None.
- 16.7 To discuss general planning matters or any matters of concern regarding building works within Norton Lindsey (parish or village)

The Clerk provided WDC's response regarding permitted development and garage conversions.

#### 17. Parish Report

None.

## 18. Date of Next Meeting

Tuesday 8 October 2019 - Ordinary Meeting

The Chairman closed the meeting at 10.21 pm.